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Characteristics of the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed
on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional
and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The directors of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or
this report misleading.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of National Arts BEmREtEBFRAR(ARRNESZS (£
Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (the “Company”) FERAMARARENBAR(SBIAEEDE
announces the unaudited consolidated results of the BT -ARFAAZTHERNBEAZ REEZEE
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as X5 BER-Z—AFRPILERBEFTHOT:

the “Group”) for the six months ended 30 June 2016,

together with the comparative figures for the

corresponding period in 2015 as follows:

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AR Z Gk 7 1E 2 B LAt 2 i W 2 3%

Three months ended
30 June

BEAA=+HIL=EA

Six months ended
30 June

BEAA=Z+BHILFEAR

2016 2015 2016 2015
—E—-REF ekl —F—NF —E—hF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
M & FHET FHET FHET FET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) I(SLETTET)] (Unaudited)
(REER) (CREEZ) (REE) CREEZ)
Revenue N 4 15,841 27,558
Other income Hfb g A 4 8,908 8,952 95
Cost of film production B BAER AN (830) (830) -
Staff costs BT A& 7 (9,575) (19,162) (18,549)
Depreciation of property, plant and %% - = M &
equipment e 7 (27,017) (29,550) (1,503)
Amortisation of land lease Bt EE
prepayments 55 7 (2,355) (6,716) (3,453)
Other operating expenses HEmgEsEA (31,810) (44,244) (34,608)
Finance costs B & A 6 (39,956) (66,042) (37,512)
Loss on early redemption REBRATRRE
of convertible bonds A K E 18 (495) (495) —
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate %l — & Bt & A &)
w AL (E1R) 19 (76) -
Share of loss of a joint venture AE—HEERE
B8 (276) (133) (627)
Loss before income tax BRF R BRI 1E 7 (87,546) (130,738) (82,420)
Income tax expense Frfefif = 8 -
Loss for the period FHIEEE (87,546) (130,738) (82,420)
Other comprehensive income/ Ht2mEAN
(expense) (FX)
Item that will not be reclassified FEEJIAEIEN
to profit or loss I5H
Gain on revaluation of properties held Z (4 {EE B Y%
for own use ARz 11 49,201 108,222 49,201 108,222
Income tax relating to gain on EHREGEHIEER
revaluation of properties held for L€
own use B P15 B (12,300) (27,056) (12,300) (27,056)
Item that may be reclassified HETHREIS
subsequently to profit or loss BEMIER
Exchange differences on translation of #&/§ 9p 2 1%
financial statements of foreign B 765 %R 2% s
operations EEMEN Z5 (10,380) (303) (8,490) 1,099
Other comprehensive income for AHEE 2 ¥
the period WA 26,521 80,863 28,411 82,265
Total comprehensive income/ AHEZEWYN h ¢°
(expense) for the period (B 4% (61,025) 32,587 (102,327) (155)
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UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RECTER 2 Bx G0 a8 S A ST a 3%

Three months ended
30 June

BEAA=+HILEZMEA

Six months ended
30 June

BEAA=+HILREAR

2016 2015 2016 2015

—E—R"F —E—hF —E—R"F —E—hF

Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
ks FET FHET FET FHET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) BE(SLETT L)) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (REER) (REEZ) (REFER)

Loss for the period FE1E A HA R

attributable to: B8 :
Owners of the Company EN/NEIE ¥ =N (87,546) (130,738) (82,420)
Non-controlling interests FEVE R AR = = -

(87,546) (130,738) (82,420)

Total comprehensive income/ E{GAHE2®E

(expense) for the period WA (FX)
attributable to: g
Owners of the Company PAN/NEIE7 ¥ =N (61,025) (102,327) (155)
Non-controlling interests IR = = -
(61,025) (102,327) (155)
Loss per share BREBE
Basic and diluted BEARR#E 9 (HK2.53 (HK1.67 (HK3.83 (HK2.85

cents #ll) R AN cents #1lll) cents 7 1l)
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UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
AR Z S 7 BB IR DL

30 June 31 December
2016 2015
—F—RE —TET—RF
V=R =l - — A=+ —H
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ihg=s Fi# T FET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (T %)
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB REZHE 11 1,783,042 1,760,457
Investment properties wEYE 12 32,200 32,200
Land lease prepayments EN T E 13 465,629 472,345
Intangible asset mEAE 14 1,079 1,079
Investment in an associate B RRIIRE 180 256
Investment in a joint venture BELERE 7,791 7,924
Available-for-sales investment AR ERE 5,250 5,000
Other receivable and deposit HEih R TE MRS 98,491 99,742
2,393,662 2,379,003
Current assets REEE
Film products BEXEmM 12,429 10,745
Trade receivables JEUW Z 58 15 6,617 3,440
Inventories &' 2,853 2,380
Prepayments, deposits and other ENRIE - &
receivables Ko B Ath i W AR T 50,131 37,823
Amount due from a joint venture JEU & & 1 FIA 2,414 2,414
Cash and bank balances R e RIRITH &% 8,662 12,705
83,106 69,507
Current liabilities BB fE
Trade payables BB 558 16 1,179
Other payables and accruals E M ERIE R FEETE A 125,217
Bank overdrafts RITEX 8,345
Loan from a related company —F@EB AR ER 17 12,400
Loans from shareholders AR R A E R 18 107,000
Borrowings f& 28,550 185,942
Finance lease obligation B 75 70 & AR I 6,295 5,954
Bonds &% 19 5,687 2,073
Convertible bond AIRRES 20 133,670 151,382
Provision for income tax FriS B B 45 2,951 2,951
281,574 602,443
Net current liabilities RBERFHE (198,468) (532,936)
Total assets less current liabilities & 2 42 {H i i &)
Bff 2,195,194 1,846,067
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UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RECHTNL 57 B MBS IR LR

30 June

2016

—E—REF
~A=+H

Note HK$’000
B & FTHET

(Unaudited)
(REER)

Non-current liabilities
Other payables

Loans from shareholders

Borrowings

Bonds
Convertible bonds
Promissory note

Finance lease obligation

Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the

Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

FRBERE
HoAh e 5 5k IE
B% 5 B X
fEE
&%

AR ES
EHRIR

B 75 A0 & R
ELERBEE

EEFE

BEXRG#E
(&N
1

ZAUNCIE RPN X ]
&

ey g E

e

390,180
40,000
19 398,333
20 164,453
21 84,176
16,229
192,104

1,285,475

909,719

380,172
529,308

909,480
239

909,719

31 December
2015

—E—RF
+ZA=+—H
HK$'000
FET
(Audited)
(B&%)

26,909
32,500
83,219
271,897
226,068
79,576
15,712
179,804

915,685

930,382

333,172
596,971

930,143
239

930,382
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UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

AREEHN Z 5 G RE £

Attributable to the owners of the Company

55

FATRANES
Properties Share  Convertible Attributable to
Share Share  Special C luation  Translati option bond equity Warrant A lated lling
capital premium  reserve surplus reserve reserve - reserve reserve  reserve losses ~ Subtotal interests Total
NEER BRE TRRESE DRES FRRER
K+ RHER FHEE RHER B REER L1 HEE i RitBR it i #E8E
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000
TEr  TEn  TEn TER THL TEr  TEn TEr  TEn TEr  TEn L TEn
At 1 January 2015 R-%-7f-F-8
(Audited) (BEH) 283839 620011 1,000 78791 338,871 2,200 26229 5040 6,399 (336,484) 1072474 — 1072474
Issue of convertible bonds arising from 48— K B AR EH
the acquisition of a subsidiary BfraakEs - - - - - - - 46,697 - - 46697 - 46697
Share issued upon conversion of  LBRATBRTEFFETH
convertiole bonds K 44333 43759 - - - - - (12421) - - 7567 - 7567
Lapse of warrants - - - - - - - - (6,399) 6,399 - - -
Lapse of the equity component of
convertible bonds - - - - - - - (5,235) - 5,235 - - -
Capital injected by non-controlling
interests - - - - - - - - - - - 245 245
Transactions with owners BHEEARTHRS 44333 43759 - - - - - 2004 (6,399 1634 122,368 u5 122613
Loss for the period FYHER - - - - - - - - - (82420)  (82,420) - (82420
Gain on revaluation of properties held Eff&{EERNEH
for own use, net of tax g MBHE - - - - 81,166 - - - - - 8166 - 81166
Exchange differences on translation of # %5 5 £ BB B K5
financial statements of foreign EEMERZE
operations - - - - - 1,099 - - - - 1,099 - 1,099
Total comprehensive income/ *HH2ERA /(A
(expense) for the period a5 - - - - 81,166 1,099 - - - (82,420) (155) - (155)
At 30 June 2015 R-§-E£7A=+H
(Unaudited) (REEH) 333172 663770 1,000 78791 420,087 (1123) 26,229 80,081 - (407270) 1,194,687 245 1194982
At 1 January 2016 R=%-~£-B-H
(Audited) (BEH) 333,172 663,770 1,000 78,791 415,357 (78,579) 26,229 80,081 (589,678) 930,143 930,382

Share issued upon conversion of  H TR EHFTETH
R

convertible bonds
Early redemption of convertible bond %2 E B E TR %

Transactions with owners ARANETHRS

Loss for the period HRER
Gain on revaluation of properties held Ef #{EEAMEH
for own use, net of tax Kg - NB KA

Exchange differences on translation of %88 X BEFBHRE

financial statements of foreign BENENZE
operations

Total comprehensive income/ *HH2ERA /(AR
aE

(expense) for the period

At 30 June 2016 R-B-AERA=1H
(REEH)

(Unaudited)

47000 47,848 (13,169) - 81619
- - 2,899) 2,878 )

47,000 47,848 (16,062) 2,878 81,664

(130,738)  (130,738)

36,901 36,901

(8,490) (8,490)

36,901 (8,490) (130,738) (102,327)

380,72 711,618 1,000 78,791 452,258 (87,069) 26,229 64,019 (717,538) 909,480

81,679
(1)

81,664

(130,738)

36,901

909,719

07
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UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AR W 5 5 Bl B R

Net cash used in operating activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash generated by financing
activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the period

Effects of exchange rate changes of the
balance of cash held
in foreign currencies

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the period

REXBAR S FH

RERBAAE S FHE

BEERBAE
ReFa

RekREeFEERE
OB ),/ 5 &8

HMzHe Rk
HeLEER

[EXREBHHMAFINERS
BT E

HRZEAEZR
ReFEREEB

Six months ended 30 June

BESA=ZT+HLESER

2016 2015

—F—RF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000

F#T THET

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBR) (REEER)

(16,464) (13,281)

(53,790) (62,357)

71,378

(4,120) 5,740

(1,118)

(2,429)

2,193
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

GENERAL

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
16 November 2001 as an exempted company under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. On 14 October 2010,
the Company deregistered in the Cayman Islands and duly
continued in Bermuda as an exempted company under the
laws of Bermuda effective on 14 October 2010. The
registered office of the Company is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong is Units 3011B—
3012, 30/F, West Tower Shun Tak Centre, 168—200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on The GEM of The
Stock Exchange. The Company is principally engaged in
investment holding. The principal activities of the Group
include film production and distribution, the provision of
management services to artistes, event coordination,
provision of travel related products and operations of film
studio and hotels. The Company and its subsidiaries are
referred to as the Group hereafter.

The wunaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”),
which is also the functional currency of the Company and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(“HK$’000”) unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, including compliance
with Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“‘HKAS”) 34 Interim
Financial Reporting and Interpretation issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and the disclosure requirements set out in Chapter 18 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
as at 30 June 2016, as the directors of the Company are
satisfied that the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to meet its financial obligations as they fall due
for the foreseeable future, after taking into consideration
the ability to generate funds internally.

The condensed consolidated financial statements should
be read in conjunction with the annual financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o o B 05 e A B
—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI B R M AR

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties
which are measured at fair values. Except as described
below, the accounting policies and methods of
computation used in the condensed consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2016 are
the same as those followed in the preparation of the
annual financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

In the current interim period, the Group has applied, the
following amendments to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) and a new interpretation issued by
the HKICPA:

Amendments to HKFRS  Investment Entities: Applying

3.

EREEBOR

BARBEHEZRENEN KAEBZRER
’f?ﬁaﬁEﬂf‘?é\ﬁﬂgﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁlﬁiﬁiﬁiﬁi o B
TXFEN  BEZZ—NFANA=+THLEANAE
RAzEREEMEREMERZEFRELFE

FERGREE T RS+ A=+—HILFE
ZAEEFEMBRERMEEEER -

RAPEERE  AEBHERTIHEBGEL
BRMz BB B REEN(HEBUBHRELED ]
BRI ARRHE:

ERMBMELEREI05 - REAER EAKE

10, HKFRS 12 and the Consolidation Exception BRI ®E 2R ABRZBIHME R
HKAS 28 B2 R BB G ER
%285 (18] )
Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions of EEMBHRELNENE WBEEEEBESD
HKFRS 11 Interests in Joint Operations (CHEN) g5 E
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative BB G EAEIR WEE
(g7 )
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable &g Rt EERIE165E & BB E LB
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation BEA G LR E38H BT A
and Amortisation (E7T )
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate &g R ERIE275R BB RR 2 ER
Financial Statements (EETA) A
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to BB HREER ?%ﬁjﬁ%iﬁiﬁ A=
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle CHEN ——FFE_ZT—
E FEBZFER
#

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs and the
new interpretation in the current interim period had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
posmons for the cul prior periods and/or on the

RATHBREEABEFBEREENZETAR

ZHRBEAKENAHEALBERR 2 HBE

BEMRAE,/ IZEREERBRGESPBRE
BRBEFERTEENERZE -




REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue derived from the Group’s principal activities
recognized during the period as follows:

Three months ended
30 June

BEAA=+HLE=MEA

2016
—T—RE¥
HK$’000
FET
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

Revenue

Artiste management fee
income

Hotel room income
Food and beverage income
Entrance fee income

Films production and
licensing income

Rental income

Sales of travel related
products

Sales of goods
Ancillary services

Other income
Bank interest income

Wavier of interest of
convertible bond

Others

LN

E UNCBEE
WA

B 5 A

BEHRA

BECE PN

ERRERERT
YA

Ha2lA

B AE B E
&

EmEE

Ff &R AR 75

Hfth W A
RITHA B A
RermikEsm

AP
Hth

2015
—ET—RF
HK$’000
TET
(Unaudited)
(RIE&EZ)

SR RS HRR A RE

4. WA RFEALBEA
BARRREAEREEEBEHRALT

Six months ended
30 June

BEAA=t+HILE-<{EAR

2016 2015
—E—RE —ZT—ARF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (R EZ)

11
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI B R M AR

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. s EbE R
The Group manages its businesses by business lines. In a REBMBZEBENEEEER - BRERIER
manner consistent with the way in which information is REFHENRAASEEESETRERASRIE
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive DEERFE([FELERTE)ETARER
management, being the chief operating decision maker BEH AR AEEBOKUATEE D E -
(“CODM"), for the purposes of resources allocation and AEBWEGLED A LEXTHT23R
performance assessment, the Group is currently organised Al

into the following operating segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

Films production and — Production and distribution B RIERET — BMERBETER
distribution, artiste of films, provision of EWNCEEYSSEE) MEAREEE
management and management services to "nE R R EB 5 E
event coordination artistes and event

coordination

Film studio operation — Operation of film studio R EE — KEEZHR

Hotel operation — Operation of hotel B E 48 & — KERE

Segment information about the Group’s reportable ERAEEAERDBHDBEARENAT -

segments is presented below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by reportable segments:

Films
production
and
distribution,
artiste
management
and event
coordination

EMHER
BT -EAEHE
REDGS

HK$’000
TERT

Six months ended
30 June 2016
(Unaudited)

Revenue from external customers

Inter-segment revenue

Reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment loss

Other income

Wavier of interest of convertible
bond

Loss on early redemption of
convertible bond

Unallocated corporation expenses
Amortisation
Finance costs

Loss before income tax

BE-T-—7~ERA
=t+HLREA
(REER)

REIREPHBA
2 ER WA

AEFRDBUWA 2,180

A2%5 HEE (6,076)

Hr g A

# R A R A5 A
78

REBE A KES
ZEB#R

NN NI

i

BB KA

BRATISHAIE R

SR RS HRR A RE

g1 W8 B (4H)

PBBAREE

NTRIZFAIZRHME SO EEBPAREED
e

Inter-
segment
elimination

Hotel
operation

Film studio
operation

HRmER
HK$°000
TER

BREER
HK$’000
FTER

53 8B [ 45 4
HK$°000
THET

BEH
HK$’000
FER

11,960
17

13,418
207
11,977

13,625 27,558

(29,765) (22,487) (58,328)

358

8,594

(495)
(8,109)
(6,716)

(66,042)

(130,738)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR B R R I 5
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. 4 #bE ()
(CONTINUED)
Films
production and
distribution,
artiste
management Inter-
and event  Film studio Hotel segment
coordination operation operation elimination Total
BYRIER
B17 - EAER
REBHE FRALE I BELE HBEAEH HmeH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FHET FAET FHET
Six months ended BE_F-A&ERXA
30 June 2015 =+HLEREAR
(Unaudited) (REER)
Revenue from external customers RE MR B & A 697 5,049 7,991 — 13,737
Inter-segment revenue LN - - 337 (337 -
Reportable segment revenue AE2HRDBPUWA 697 5,049 8,328 (337) 13,737
Reportable segment loss AZ2HHHBEE 4,212 (21,932) (10,078) - (36,222)
Other income H At U A 95
Unallocated corporation expenses & ) B2 /A 8] 5 3 (5,328)
Amortisation B (3,459)
Finance costs BEKAE (37,512)
Loss before income tax W BT 15 i A S 48 (82,420)

%ﬁm%%o

5 H 5 BHEE 5 3
%ﬁﬁﬁ$@%.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities

At 30 June 2016
(Unaudited)

Reportable segment assets

Property, plant and equipment
Cash and cash equivalents
Intangible asset

Investment properties
Available-for-sales investment
Unallocated corporation assets

Consolidated assets
Reportable segment liabilities

Loans from shareholders
Borrowings

Bonds

Convertible bonds

Promissory note

Deferred tax liabilities

Provision for income tax
Unallocated corporation liabilities

Consolidated liabilities

At 31 December 2015 (Audited)

Reportable segment assets

Property, plant and equipment
Cash and cash equivalents
Intangible asset

Investment properties
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated assets
Reportable segment liabilities

Loan from a related company
Loans from shareholders
Borrowings

Bonds

Convertible bonds

Promissory note

Deferred tax liabilities
Provision for income tax
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated liabilities

R=ZF¥—7:E7xA=Z+H
(REER)
MERGBEE

ME - BERRE
Re kA eFEEE
BVEE
REME
AHHELRE
ROBRRIEE

GEAE
TEHFBER

B REE R
B

&%

AR ESR
E3ES
EERBEERE
iR EE
AOBARIAE

R=Z—REF

A=t—R(EER)

AEZRHBEE

M- BERR
Re kB FEER
BVAE
REME
ROBEREEE

REAE
AERDBAE

— BB A R B
B BB K

fE&

&%

AR (& 5
R R
BREHIAERR
P15 Bt B4
ANBARAEE

INTERIM REPORT 2016 % /N4 th i ik

5. & BH(H)

PBEERER

Films production
and distribution,
artiste management
and event
coordination
EYRERET
BEAEEREHAES
HK$'000

FET

36,892

(6,013)

26,499

Film studio
operation
BEREE
HK$'000
FET

1,374,347

(71,351)

1,337,273

SRe MBS IR MG
Hotel
operation Total
EEEE HeE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

1,016,266

(47,851)

1,037,823

(1,642)

(96,691)

(75,624)

2,427,505

1,446
5,486
1,079

32,200
5,250
3,802

2,476,768
(125,215)

(390,180)
(68,550)
(404,020)
(298,123)
(84,176)
(192,104)
(2,951)
(1,730)

(1,567,049)

2,401,595

1,625
8,063
1,079
32,200
4,048

2,448,610

(173,957)

(1,518,128)

15
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR BRI EE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. 4rEkE R (H)
(CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PBEERERE(E)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and REZRSHBERRARRDBHEIEER:

allocating resources between segments:

fe=ll
Ho

N
pu)

— all assets are allocated to reportable segments other — RRBIEEN FEREEIRES
than corporate assets; and 5 EB &

GO

&5
N

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments — RNBIEEN  MEEEEIEESTZE2R

other than corporate liabilities. Al

Other segment information H b5 &6 5 8
Films production
and distribution,
artiste management

and event Film studio Hotel
coordination operation operation Total

EHRERET
EAEEREHMAE HANEE BEEEE RS

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FiET FHT FiET
At 30 June 2016 R-B—R"EXA=+H
(Unaudited) (REEH)
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BEREE
and equipment e 13,908 14,823 29,343
Amortisation of land lease ANt AE
prepayments B 5,594 1,122 6,716
Addition to non-current assets B EEEM 16,192 254 16,791
At 30 June 2015 R-¥-AfE~A=+H
(Unaudited) (REER)
Depreciation of property, plant mE - BERERE
and equipment e 96 379 557 1,032
Amortisation of land lease ERLAE
prepayments B = 2,331 1,122 3,453
Addition to non-current assets JE B K E 958 42,289 8,299 51,546
Geographical information HEEE
All the Group’s revenue and non-current assets are AEBFRARARERDEEL T ERAFTE(E
principally attributable to the PRC including Hong Kong HEB)(AIARERENEZ QR FTENHE)

(being the place of domicile of the major companies
comprising the Group).

The geographical location of customers is based on the BRI ER D EREAESERREFE LM
location at which the contracts are negotiated and entered BME - KEIBBEEHBEKAETEBREHHRE -

with the customers. The total revenue from external
customers is mainly sourced from the PRC.

&



6. FINANCE COSTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. Ml A

Three months ended
30 June

BEAA=+BHLE=MEA

2016 2015

et B T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) eGSR

Finance lease charges
Interest on bonds

Interest on convertible bonds
Interest on other borrowings

MHBHEER
BEHHE
AR ESN R
HEEHNE

555
15,709
11,037
12,655

39,956

7.  LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

SR RS HRR A RE

Six months ended
30 June

BEAA=+HIEREA

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) eGSR

1,101 1,138

21,663 5,637
20,817 17,105
22,461 13,632
66,042 37,512

7. BT B H

Three months ended
30 June

BEAA=+HILEZ=MEA

2016
—EF-RE
HK$’000
FET
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

2015
—E—RE
HK$’000
FHET
(Unaudited)
(R EZ)

Loss before income tax is
arrived at after charging

Auditors’ remuneration

Amortisation of land lease
prepayments

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of non-
current assets

Employee benefit expenses
(including directors’
remuneration)

Salaries and allowances

Contributions to retirement
benefits schemes

BRETS B AT ES IR E HNER
T5I&IR
1% 2B B &
BNLEE
# 55
M BMELRE
e

HEFRBEER

&=

EEEAFX
(BREESH)

& ROEB
B4R A 58 3R

Six months ended
30 June

BEAA=+HILAEAR

2016
—EF-RE
HK$’000
FET
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

2015
—E—RE
HK$’000
FHET
(Unaudited)
(R EZ)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

K B R T
8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for the six
months ended 30 June 2016 (30 June 2015: Nil) as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits in Hong
Kong during these periods.

The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) Enterprises
Income Tax at 25% has not been provided as the PRC
subsidiaries incurred losses for taxation purpose for both
periods.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
loss attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$130,738,000 (30 June 2015:
approximately HK$82,420,000) and the weighted average
of approximately 3,411,778,000 (30 June 2015:
approximately 2,890,839,000) ordinary shares in issue
during the period.

Diluted loss per share for the loss attributable to the
owners of the Company for the six months ended 30
June 2016 and 2015 was the same as basic loss per
share as the impact of the exercise of the share options,
warrants and convertible bonds is anti-dilutive.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of an interim
dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2016 (30
June 2015: Nil).

10.

Fir 15 Bt B 3¢
mAAEENHE—E—AFAA=+ELESEA
URERBECEMRABEY KL ELLS
PR BB ERELEB(CE-EEAA=T
B:f) e

AP A EE AR SN ([rn B ) B /28 22 ) 5 7 8] A P
i’]ﬁ'f#}ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ B 5 5t P B b PSR (B R
7525%) (R B E -

REMRAEEE LT IR TR AR RDAE R X
BRI ERAE -

¢ i 18

BREAEBEDIREERAR ﬂﬁﬁ“ﬁ/\ﬁ{m&ﬂém
130,788,000 w(ZE —AHAF AN A=+ H: 4
82,420,000/ 7o) & HA N B 8 17 & i AR /0 I 42 15
£ 493,411,778,000 (=T —HFNA=+H: (&
E7%1|) 492,890,839,000% ) 5+ & -

MRTTEREEE REEERATARESFAAR
wmEyE - ﬁﬁ(ét:t)? RNER-Z-HFRNA=
THIENEA  ARREAARERBRENSKE
BEEETREABEMER -

it B

EEETEBERNBE_Z-R"FAA=TAHL
NEAWBHBRE(CE-—AFRAZTH ) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

The movements of property, plant and equipment of the

Group were:

SR RS HRR A RE

11. 3 - Wb Kok i

At 1 January
Additions:
Property, plant and equipment
Surplus on valuation
Disposal
Depreciation
Exchange realignment

Transfer to investment properties

Closing net book value

m—HA—8
NE
mE - BEREE

ERAHK

&

wE

[E 5 A&
BERZEREDXE

R FREEFE

The carrying amount of leasehold land and buildings

shown above are situated on:

Land in Hong Kong under medium-term
leases

Land in the PRC under medium-term leases

MR BB PRIAEE T i

LB h B & £ i

REEME BERRHEZEZBOT:

30 June 31 December
2016 2015
—E—RF —T-hF
~A=+H +=—RA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (REZ)
1,760,457 1,595,981
16,965 203,762
49,201 80,190
(115) (273)
(29,550) (561,820)
(13,916) (50,627)
= (16,756)
1,783,042 1,760,457

EXAREE LW REBTFREBENSTNAT

30 June 31 December
2016 2015

=t ek —z-nf
~A=+H T=H=—FE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (18 ER)

10,128

10,128
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AR RS R I
11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 11. W3k ~ Wb K st s (4

EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Hotel properties and film studio were revaluated on 30
June 2016 by RHL Appraisal Limited (“RHL’). The
revaluation surplus of approximately HK$49,201,000 net of
applicable deferred income taxes of approximately
HK$12,300,000 was credited to properties revaluation
reserve in the amount of approximately HK$36,901,000. If
hotel properties and the film studio had not been
revalued, it would have been included in the consolidated

BEEWEREBRBEN -E—NFEANAE=ZTHHK
FITFHEBEBARAR (DRFTT) ETEM - B
& # (#949,201,0007% 7T) 1B 8 AR IE L AT 18 T
(#912,300,0007% 7t) B 5T A &8 49 436,901,000
THMEEGHEE MBSV EREER I EE
TEY WERER-_Z—XFXA=ZT+HEESL
A AR5 Bl # 4 433,870,000 7T K626,076,0007% 7T
FIAGRA B RE -

financial statements at historical cost of approximately
HK$433,870,000 and approximately HK$626,076,000
respectively as at 30 June 2016.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest [SP58=3
and best use of the properties is their current use. The TRz AEREBERE MENFUIRFRAAE
reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value HEHRMHERYIN 5K o

balances is stated in the above table.

HA - HERNEEES - TRIEHAENOMNE
EREMENAABLERMAMBERMREE
MABBINER  URBHAREFEERAR
B ETEGARBNIBEREEMOENRA
BEERE-BREE=H) -

There has been no change to the valuation techniques
during the period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these hotel properties and
film studio are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and key inputs used), as well as the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (Level 1 to 3) based on the degree to which
the key inputs to the fair value measurements is

observable.
Significant
Fair value unobservable
Element hierarchy  Valuation techniques and key inputs inputs Range/Amount Sensitivity
BEXFIARR @E,
TR AREER BHEREREZHANBRE [PN & & WBE

Hotel properties Level 3 Direct comparison method by assuming sales  Discounts on -10% to 10% The higher the
transactions as available in the relevant quality of premiums or y
market (i.e. sales transaction price per hotel properties discounts, the higher
room) or lower the fair

values

10%E10% SHERITERAR @ DA
1B & 5 RE

Replacement RMB337,000,000 The higher the costs of
costs of \ constructions, the
constructions higher the fair

on the land 3

Discou o e higher the

quality of discounts, the lower
properties the fair values
i B AR

BEERA
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12.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the net carrying
amount of film studio held under finance leases of the
Group was approximately HK$9,783,000 (31 December
2015: HK$10,128,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s properties interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

SR RS HRR A RE

11. Y3 ~ Wb Kok fli ()

RBERR AEEREREAESENTEM
B BR B 49/59,783,0008 T (ZE—HFE+= A
=+—H:10,128,000/8 7T) °

12. &M

AEERRBESRERAAZEMRELEE
ERANMERGRAARLEREGE  WAKE
REEWEIBRAR -

30 June 31 December
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
~A=+H +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#IT FE T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REERX) (= =Z)
Fair value ARE
At 1 January n—A—H -
Net decrease in fair value recognised MR8z AHERH A 7 E
in profit or loss B F R (900)
Transfer from property, plant and HEBEAYE BER
equipment B 33,100
Closing net book value HR FREEFE 32,200
Changes in unrealised loss on KNEMF R AE
revaluation of investment properties ~ HIE(H &R & ¥ %
for the period/year included in profit 7k % I8 &5 18 & & &)
or loss (900)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR BRI EE
13. LAND LEASE PREPAYMENTS 13. #AT LB
The Group’s land lease prepayments comprise: AEENENLHAERRE:
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZT—h%F
~A=+H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (&%)
At 1 January Rn—A—H 472,345 80,262
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 24) W BE — B A B (A iE24) - 402,251
Amortisation during the period/year B F A (6,716) (10,168)
Closing net book value R/ FREEFE 465,629 472,345
The land lease prepayments represented the premium ENT A EEETHR BB T ERUREHE
recognised when acquiring the land interests in the PRC THES TS TERARE -
by operating lease arrangement with the local authority.
14. INTANGIBLE ASSET 14. WL K &
Licence
HK$'000
FET
COST 2%
Balance at 31 December 2015, 1 January and R=ZFE—RF+=-A=+—8"
30 June 2016 —E-—RE-A-—BRANA=+THNER 1,079
CARRYING AMOUNTS iR &
Balance at 31 December 2015 and RZT—RFT-_A=+T—HEK
30 June 2016 —E-RNFARAZTHMER 1,079
The licence represents the licence plate which enable the [EREAFEHNPEEAE S ITE RS2
vehicle to travel and hang licence plate in both PRC and RS E - MEBRSEINSRERSESE 252
Hong Kong. The licence is renewable every year at AAEBEEESERBY G N FTESTER
minimal cost. The directors are of the opinion that the BR o

Group would renew the licence continuously and has the
ability to do so.
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15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSET
(CONTINUED)

The licence is considered by the management of the
Group as having an indefinite useful life because it is
expected to generate economic benefit to the Group
indefinitely. The licence will not be amortised until its
useful life is determined to be finite. Instead it will be
tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication that it may be impaired.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group generally allows a credit period from 30 to 90
days to its trade customers. The ageing analysis of trade
receivables, net allowance for bad and doubtful debts are
stated as follows:

14.

15.

SR RS HRR A RE

P& B (8)

AEBEEEERREREEREAFY  ARE
HMERAERAASAEE T RLENE - BB
%@%% EiﬁTﬁﬁi%%m%ﬁ@ A

//)i TE ﬂ“ﬂ Al o

JE W 2 5 ik JH

FEEHEESE SR R 58— A30E90
B o fEUCE 55 IH (N B R IR B ) 0B 8 4 A
M

0 to 60 days 0%60H

61 to 90 days 61£290H
91 to 180 days 91&180H
Over 180 days R #1180 H

30 June 31 December
2016 2015
—B-AE —T-nfF
~B=+H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (RER)
4,283 1,494

768 871

550 660

1,016 415

6,617 3,440

Included in the balances are debtors with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$1,566,000 (31 December
2015: approximately HK$1,075,000) which are past due at
the reporting date for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss. Trade receivables that are past due
but not impaired related to a number of customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors believe that no impairment loss
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The directors considered that the fair values of trade
receivables are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because these amounts have short maturity
periods at their inception.

EERFR AT R IR M E 4 51,566,0008 0 (ZE—%
FE+ ==+ —H: 41,075,000/ 7T) #) fE 1 7K 18
RBEAC A AEEYELAZSREKKEBE
HRAEBERE COHETRBENERES
REFRAEEETRAERCHRITFNES -
BIEBTER EFEE BRZERFLPNEE
BRUVEERES  ZSEHDERAETEEK
Bl MEBEARZEARELREBEBRE - A%
BY ERZEEniEaiRMam -

EERA AREBREZFRARELREHA
AH MEAREREEHELESAER -

&

23
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NATIONAL ARTS ENTERTAINMENT AND CULTURE GROUP LIMITED [ 25 4% 3¢ {b 45 [ A PR 7]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE

16.

17.

18.

WA B R BT
TRADE PAYABLES 16. BT E 5 H
The Group has granted by its suppliers’ credit periods AEBEREEMHERE TI0EC0AMEER - ER
from 30 to 60 days. The ageing analysis of trade ESRENRETOT
payables is stated as follows:
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—RF
7~A=+H +-B=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (ER)
0 to 30 days 0&30H 635
31 to 60 days 31£60H 198
61 to 90 days 61£290H 39
91 to 180 days 91E180H 253
Over 180 days R #1180 H 59
1,179
LOAN FROM A RELATED 17, — [H B Bk 2w i B 3K
COMPANY
Loan from a related company represented short-term —HEABEARNERRAARBERTER LR
interest bearing loans granted to National Arts MAEEMEREDHEAREARENNE A
Entertainment Limited (“NA Entertainment”) by First Credit MBARARAEBEREFRAA ((EERE ))&
Limited, of which Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (“Mr. Sin”), a non- EEpSE Kﬁ/?\%%ﬂ o aZEf%‘ME%ﬂ%H%EJFE\ A
executive director of the Company, has significant R —FRERLERDAFERXER - ZREHKE
influence. The loan is interest-bearing at the rate at 11% RZT-REHANBREHREER -
per annum, repayable within one year and are secured by
a corporate guarantee granted by the Company. The loan
was fully repaid on 8 April 2016.
LOANS FROM SHAREHOLDERS 18. B 3 B B

Loans from shareholders were unsecured, with the interest
rate in between 0%—15% and repayable within two to
three years.

BROERSEER - F XN F0%EE% * WA
RZE=FREE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BONDS
2013 Bonds

On 23 May 2013, the Company issued the bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$78,775,000 (the “2013
Bonds”) at par value in accordance with the conditional
placing and underwriting agreement dated 16 April 2013
entered into between the Company and an independent
placing agent. The 2013 Bonds have a maturity of 2 years
from the date of issue and bear coupon interest at 7.5%
per annum, accrued daily and payable annually in arrears.
A default rate of 12% per annum will be charged on any
sum due and payable under the 2013 Bonds from the due
date to the date of actual payment in full. The 2013
Bonds were denominated in HKS.

In addition, same amount of unlisted warrants (the
“Warrants”) were issued (for no additional payment) to the
bondholders who are entitled to subscribe in aggregate up
to HK$78,775,000 for the warrant shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.115 per warrant share within 2 years from the
date of issue of the Warrants. As a result of the share
consolidation announced by the Company on 7 July 2014
and the rights issue announced by the Company on 4
August 2014 and in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Warrants, adjustment to the subscription
price of the Warrants from HK$0.115 per warrant share to
HK$1.091 per warrant share has become effective.

The Warrants are detachable from the 2013 Bonds and
the Warrants and the 2013 Bonds can be transferred
separately in whole or in part in minimum amount of
HK$575,000 or integral multiples thereof. The 2013 Bonds
was fully repaid on 22 May 2015.

2015 Bonds

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
issued the bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$303,000,000 (the “2015 Bonds”) at par value in
accordance with the conditional placing and underwriting
agreement entered into between the Company and the
independent placing agents. The 2015 Bonds have a
maturity from 1 year to 7 years from the dates of issue
and bear coupon interest ranging from 4% to 11% per
annum, accrued daily and payable annually in arrears. A
default rate ranging from 4% to 11% per annum will be
charged on any sum due and payable under the 2015
Bonds from the due date to the date of actual payment in
full. The 2015 Bonds were denominated in HKS.

2016 Bonds

During the six months ended 30 June 2016, the Company
issued the bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$129,982,000 (the “2016 Bonds”) at par value in
accordance with the conditional placing and underwriting
agreement entered into between the Company and the
independent placing agents. The 2016 Bonds have a
maturity from 1 year to 8 years from dates of issue and
bear coupon interest ranging from 4.66% to 12% per
annum accrued daily and payable annually in arrears. A
default rate ranging from 4.66% to 12% annum will be
charged on any sum due and payable under the 2016
Bonds from the due date to the date of actual payment in
full. The 2016 Bonds were denominated in HK$.

SR RS HRR A RE

19. fE3

—B-ZEfS

R-E—=FRA-+=H ARFRBEARQFE
—HBUREREBENR_ZE—=FWNA+ B3
WERTEERBE NS RARERTASEHE
A787750008 THEH ([T —=F&EH)) - =
T-—EEHFNBTAREAMEINS  SFE8
RATE% FEEBRARH T ASFRHFRIMNT
B MAREIN T —=FEHFNE DB
ENEE ARIBAZERE28INAHEE
FRUWENFRZAFE c ZT—=FEHUE
JLEME °

N BREHFFEARTHRHEEMNIELTR
B ((RREEDN(BAEIMR)  BTESE
FRBETRBREZAHBRAMEAN  KEREES
AR R AR AE AR5 01158 LR EE A H & %£78,775,000
BTORBREFERD - BERAARRZZ—HF
tAEAAHZRHEHRARARRZZE—HNEN
ARz I A R AR B RIAEE 253 R IE
% REEHATRAREZFRNDONSETAES
AR EZRMDI0NB T LK -

REEBAR - =FEEF OB MABIE
BR-_Z-—=FEHFUPBRBrARESE
575,000 Tk HZEBFHTFULHAERE - —_F—
“FEHFER-T-AFRA-T-_ABHEE -

—E-LEfES

RBE-_ZE—AF+_A=+—HIFER £
ARBEARB BB YRENBITLNB KGR E
KB - IREEE{TA% %% /303,000,000
BLIHEF(ZZ—AFEE]) —T—HFESH
RETHHET LT BEXN T T F4%
211% M BEEFRAF T ASFRARIMH A A
B iR - —RAFEELENEMEHEN
S BERIHAEERE2HEINBHRET F4%
ENRHBENFEZIMAFE - ZE—RFEHFUB
JLEH{E °

“E-RERH

RBE_Z—REXNA=THENEA  £2FR
BAAREBYRERBETINEREEERE
Hin  REEZTAS B8 R129,982,000/%8 7T
HNEF(ZZE—RFEHFD ST "FEFRE
THEHBF1ESF R B B XN T 5 F466%E
12% ' A B BEHRTILAEGFRBARIMN A
BofRESIN T~ NEEENE R IHEN
S BRI BEEER 2R INBHRESF
4.66%E12%MELNFNEZMHE - ZT—XFE
FUABTTETHE °
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19. BONDS (CONTINUED)

19. f& 2% (4)

The movement for the period on the Bonds was as

follows:

AEMABESFOESOT

30 June
2016

—E—REF
~HA=+H
HK$°000
FHET

(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

Balance at 1 January
Proceeds from issue of the bonds
Transaction cost allocated to the liability

component

Interest expense (note 6)
Interest paid during the period/year
Repayment during the period/year

Closing balance

Carrying amount repayable:

Within one year

More than one year but not exceeding two

years

More than two years but not exceeding

five years

More than five years

W—HA—BZ#&H
BITEFMFRE
PEZEERIN
RHKA
MBS (Hf726)
R FREMNF S
R/ FREER

IR E R

ARNATHRAEBEZ
BRI

&R

— L BT F

MER EETBBRF

RFIRE

273,970
129,982

(16,405)
21,663
(2,190)
(3,000)

404,020

5,687

19,339

306,025
72,969

404,020

.‘9\

31 December
2015

—E—REF
+=—A=+—H
HK$'000
FHET
(Audited)
(EE2)

79,946
303,000

(34,390)
10,729
(6,540)

(78,775)

273,970

2,073

17,123

197,255
57,519

273,970
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS
CB3

On 23 May 2013, the Company issued convertible bonds
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$92,000,000
(“CB3”) at par value in accordance with the conditional
placing and underwriting agreement dated 16 April 2013
entered into between the Company and an independent
placing agent. The CB3 has a maturity of 2 years from the
date of issue and bears coupon interest at 7.5% per
annum, accrued daily and payable annually in arrears. A
default rate of 12% per annum will be charged on any
sum due and payable under the CB3 from the due date to
the date of actual payment in full. The CB3 was
denominated in HKS.

The conversion price of the CB3, subject to the anti-
dilution usual adjustments, is HK$0.115 per conversion
share. As a result of the Share Consolidation and the
Rights Issue and in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the CB3, adjustment to the conversion price
of CB3 from HK$0.115 per conversion share to HK$1.091
per conversion share has become effective. The
outstanding principal amount of the CB3 can be
converted in whole or any part (in minimum amount of
HK$575,000 or an integral multiple thereof) into conversion
shares from the date of issue of the CB3 up to and
including the date falling on the 7th day immediately prior
to the maturity date.

The Company may redeem the CB3 in whole or in part (in
minimum amount of HK$575,000 or integral multiples
thereof), at the principal amount together with interests
accrued up to the date of redemption at anytime before
maturity.)

The fair value of the liability component of the CB3 was
estimated at the issuance date using an equivalent market
interest rate for a similar bond with call option. The
residual amount (being the difference between the net

he CB ' th

20.

R B R B R E

Lk 4
BEHTRR RS

RIE—Z=ZFFA-1+=8 " ARBREAQF E
—ZBIURERER-_ZE—=FW A+ B
MERTREERBHEDRE  FARERTASEH
/492,000,000 T 8 AT 2 B & 2 ([ B = Al 2 AR &
%) o F=Hra R EH N 1T B R W F R
B BFEE%XA75%  MEBHRAFWEATFR

HRINITAME - HWARENE=HATBRERE
FOEMIRENSE  ARIBRZEREH

S BER T F12%0 R OFELNF 8 - E= it
AR ESFABTAE -

“HARREFHOHLRERETRILBRKHKH115
B EEAZ-MREEARMBR - BRRG
AP REBRARBIES = HAI B EES ZIER L
G E=HTRBRESFHLREHTR B
RO AE ATR L BRMH1.091B TEL L
Mo BESHUBBRESFBITEHEZEE AR
BESFFPERE LR (BEZRA) BE - E=4t
BREFNREERNS (K S EEEA575000
BLKETEFE)AI2 TR BoERAK LIRR

{/\ o

RARAREBAENRERASEERAEEZE
EIHHAIEMEFE - Bl 2o H =it
ﬂﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁmww%EXEnﬁ
EE) -

FEoHABBRESBERSDNETARAEE
RBHENRBEESFORET SN EMEFEA
uﬁ R B (ABETE=RATRBREFORS
= REARBERO MR L ERNZE) WIHER
AR E S R B TS
RILBHAAGE -
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20.

S R B

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
(CONTINUED)

CB3 (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, on initial
recognition, the fair value of the liability component of the
CB83 was calculated using future repayments discounted at
an estimated discount rate of 12.68%. The transaction
costs incurred for the issuance of the CB3 were allocated
into the liability component and the equity component of
approximately HK$5,270,000 and HK$500,000 respectively
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Subsequently, interest expense on the CBS3 is calculated
using the effective interest method by applying effective
interest rate of 16.53%. On initial recognition, the amount
of equity component of CB3 was approximately
HK$7,978,000. CB3 was fully repaid on 22 May 2015.

CB4

As part of the consideration of the acquisition of
remaining equity interests in HRL and EPL, the Company
issued convertible bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$420,000,000 (“CB4”) on 2 October 2013.
The CB4 has a maturity of 3 years from the date of issue
and bears coupon interest at 4% per annum, accrued
daily and payable annually in arrears. A default rate of 8%
per annum will be charged on any sum due and payable
under the CB4 from the due date to the date of actual
payment in full. The CB4 was denominated in HKS$.

The conversion price of the CB4, subject to the anti-
dilution usual adjustments, is HK$0.112 per conversion
share. As a result of the Share Consolidation and the
Rights Issue and in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the CB4, adjustment to the conversion price
of the CB4 from HK$0.112 per conversion share to
HK$1.063 per conversion share has become effective. The
outstanding principal amount of the CB4 can be
converted in whole or any part (in minimum amount of
HK$420,000 or an integral multiple thereof) into
conversion shares from the date of issue of the CB4 up to
and including the date falling on the 7th day immediately
prior to the maturity date.

The holder of the CB4 shall be entitled to request the
Company to pay interest to it (wholly or partly) by way of
allotment and issuance of new shares of the Company at
the conversion price on the due day of the interest
payment in lieu of payment by cash. Such interest
conversion arrangement is only applicable to the 4% per
annum interest payment and is not applicable to the 8%
default interest payment. The Company may redeem the
CB4 at any time prior to the maturity date in whole or any
part (in minimum amount of HK$420,000 or an integral
multiple thereof) at the principal amount of such CB4
thereof plus interest accrued thereon up to the actual date
of redemption.

20.
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REBEE-_Z—=F+-A=+—HILEE RI#
HRE  F-HAURRESFABRTINAAEIR
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FENHBATMBRESOFTEABERARRERRE
MEEIHAMNKRESRRBRHERBETAQR A
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS
(CONTINUED)

CB4 (Continued)

The CB4 has been valued at the issuance date by a
qualified professional valuer. The fair value of the liability
component of the CB4 was estimated at the issuance
date using an equivalent market interest rate for a similar
bond with call option. The residual amount (being the
difference between the fair value of the CB4 at issuance
date and the fair value of the liability component on initial
recognition) is assigned as the equity component and is
included in equity heading convertible bond equity
reserve. The liability component is subsequently measured
at amortised cost.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component of the CB4 was calculated using future
repayments discounted at an estimated discount rate of
15.683%. Subsequently, interest expense on the CB4 is
calculated using the effective interest method by applying
effective interest rate of 16.47%. On initial recognition, the
amount of equity component of CB4 was approximately
HK$120,540,000.

In August 2014, the Company has early redeemed the
CB4 with aggregate principal amounts of approximately
HK$215,460,000 by cash at approximately
HK$208,996,000 which Mr. Sin offered to waive the
accrued interest up to the date of repayment and to
provide a discount of 3% on the principal amount). A loss
on redemption of the CB4 of approximately
HK$25,252,000, which represented the difference between
the redemption price allocated to liability component of the
CB4 and the carrying amount of the liability component of
the CB4 at the redemption date, has been credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2014. In June 2016, the Company has early redeemed the
CB4 with aggregate principal amounts of HK$10,080,000
by cash at approximately HK$10,382,000 (being the
principal amount of HK$10,080,000 and accrued interests
of approximately HK$302,000). A loss on redemption of
the CB4 of approximately HK$495,000, which represented
the difference between the redemption price allocated to
the liability component of the CB4 and the carrying
amount of the liability component of the CB4 at the
redemption date, has been recognised. The CB4 was
valued at the redemption date by a qualified professional
valuer. The fair values of the liability component and the
equity component of the redeemed CB4 at redemption
date were derived by means of the same method used at
issuance date.

As at 30 June 2016, the carrying amount of the
outstanding principal amount of the CB4 is approximately
HK$151,176,000 (31 December 2015: HK$151,382,000).

Included in CB4 are amounts of HK$38,640,000 and
HK$46,700,000 due to Ms. Law Po Yee and Mr. Chow Kai
Weng, the directors of the Company respectively.
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20. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(CONTINUED)
cBs

As part of the consideration of the acquisition of Lux
Unicorn Limited as detailed in note 24, the Company
issued convertible bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$300,000,000 (“CB5”) on 15 April 2015. The
CBb5 has a maturity of 3 years from the date of issue and
bears coupon interest at 9% per annum, accrued daily
and payable annually in arrears. The conversion price of
CB5, subject to the anti-dilution usual adjustments, is
HK$0.18 per conversion share. The CB5 was
denominated in HK$.

The conversion price of the CB5, subject to the usual
adjustments, is HK$0.18 per conversion share. The
outstanding principal amount of the CB5 can be
converted in whole or any part (in minimum amount of
HK$300,000 or an integral multiple thereof) into
conversion shares from the date of issue of the CB5 up to
and including the date falling on the 5th day immediately
prior to the maturity date.

The holder of the CB5 shall be entitled to request the
Company to pay interest to it (wholly or partly) by way of
allotment and issuance of new shares of the Company at the
conversion price on the due day of the interest payment in
lieu of payment by cash by giving not less than 7 business
days’ written notice prior to the due date for payment of
interest. Such interest conversion arrangement is only
applicable to the 9% per annum interest payment. The
Company may redeem the CB5 at any time prior to the
maturity date in whole or any part (in minimum amount of
HK$300,000 or an integral multiple thereof) at the principal
amount of such CB5 thereof plus interest accrued thereon
up to the actual date of redemption by giving to the bond
holder not less than 10 business days’ written notice of its
intention to make such redemption.

The fair value of th
calculated using
estimated ¢

‘component of the CB5 was
nents discounted at an

20.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS
(CONTINUED)

CB5 (Continued)

In May 2016 and June 2015, CB5 with aggregate principal
amounts of HK$84,600,000 and HK$79,800,000 were
converted into 470,000,000 ordinary shares and
443,333,333 ordinary shares of the Company in total at a
conversion price of HK$0.18 each respectively. During the
six months ended 30 June 2016, Mr. Sin and four holders
of CB5 offered to waive the accrued interest up to the
date of conversion of approximately HK$8,594,000. As at
30 June 2016, the carrying amount of outstanding
principal amount of the CB5 is approximately
HK$146,947,000 (31 December 2015: HK$226,068,000).

Included in CB5 is amount
HK$146,947,000 due to Mr. Sin.

of approximately

The movement of the liability components of the
convertible bonds recognised in the statement of financial
position are as follows:

20.
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FAM TR RS (E)

RIE—RNEFERAN_ZE—RFENA AL EHEA
84,600,000/ 7T }79,800,0007% 7t #) 25 T # AT 42 f%
BERALBLEBEBERISETEBRABAQGAHR
470,000,000 % & 38 f% }2443,333,333[% & i A% - &
ECE-XNENAZTHIEABA  EEAERMA
FRAMATRRESFZHEBEARECHEZERBH 2
JESHF B.#)8,504,000/8 L - RZZT—XENA=
+H FRABATRBREFHREELISSENE
E{E %) /146,947,000 0 (ZE—AF+=-A=+
— [ : 226,068,000 7T) °

FRAMATBRBRESFCERLELENRELD
146,947,000/ Tt °

ERMBRAEBEROAIRREFEELIDOE
BT

CB3 CcB4 CB5 Total
EERTIR FOMETIR FABTR

B’ &S k&S KkiEH Bt

HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET

Balance at 1 January 2015 RZE—RAF—A—AN&EH 66,382 140,260 - 206,642
Fair value of liability components on ] 25 i 72 B & & 3 2 &Y

initial recognition ARE — — 283,308 283,308

Effective interest expenses (note 6) BB 8.5 X (/1 i£6) 2,848 17,506 — 20,354

Interest paid during the year FREMFE (4,830) (6,384) (1,514) (12,728)

Fair value changes AREZE = == 19,945 19,945

Converted into ordinary shares  HBATAR = — (75,671) (75,671)

- Repayment of princ E&E — — (64,400)

151,382 226,068 377,450

9,664 1163 20817
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20. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 20. W] % B f5 %% (4)
(CONTINUED)
CB3 CB4 CB5 Total
E=HTTIR EMHTR FERATR
KEH BES KEH st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET FET
Carrying amount repayable BARUTHRREEREZ
R &
Within one year —F R — 133,670 — 133,670
More than one year but not —FFETNBBWF
exceeding two years — 17,506 146,947 164,453
— 151,176 146,947 298,123
21. PROMISSORY NOTE 21. ARG E
On 15 April 2015, the Company issued promissory note RZZE—AFMA+THA  RARBREARREZE
with principal amount of HK$80,000,000 (the “PN") at par MBARKSHCEXBERAFEAQFIFNITES
value in accordance with the sale and purchase HEMEETVAMR - F-—MF+-A—+—H
agreement dated 22 December 2014 entered into between 2 EBEEWZE  REEETAS S5 A80,000000
Elegant Motion Enterprises Limited, the wholly owned Bz EAZEBR(EAERE]D - AH BRI
subsidiary of the Company and Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, the AHR=F2H 8 RFMNERI%EB R
non-executive director of the Company. The PN have a WARGFERIMN - ARREIVABITEE -

maturity of 3 years from the date of issue and bear
coupon interest at 9% per annum, accrued daily and
payable annually in arrears. The PN were denominated in

HK$.

During the six months ended 30 June 2016, on initial BE-Z—AFAAZTALAEA  RUOT#ER
recognition, the fair value of the PN was calculated by By » ARSI 2 D So B )Y IR i T BRI 12,37 9% 86
discounting future repayments at an estimated discount fﬁﬂiﬂfﬁi#ﬂgﬁﬁ'ﬁ ° ﬁjﬁ AR ZRAE R E R
rate of 12.37%. Subsequently, interest expense on the PN RIFRIE BN R 4% E M EFH X -

was calculated using the effective interest method by
applying an effective interest rate of 12.41%.

HEERBAZEHNT

PN
ESES S
HK$'000

THT
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LRGBS IR R M R
22. COMMITMENTS 22, &
(a)  Commitments under operating lease (a) REEERE
The Group had the following future aggregate REBERBTIHBELCEHEEUTRRK
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable SEMBENKERE  JNHABROT:

operating leases which fall due as follows:

30 June 31 December
2016 2015

—E—REF¥ —E-RF
~A=+H +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (EZ)

Within one year —FR 9,833 8,589
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZERF(RIEERMF) 30,319 28,506
Over five years HBBAF 112,312 107,618

152,464 144,713




@ NATIONAL ARTS ENTERTAINMENT AND CULTURE GROUP LIMITED 5 #5 4% 3¢ b 42 [ 47 BR 2 )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR e B R MR
22. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 22. & ¥ ()
(b)  Capital commitments (b) BERIE
The Group had the following capital commitments: REBAUATERELE:
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
—E—RF —Z—h%F
~A=+H +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT F#& T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REETEZ) (EZ)
Contracted but not provided for: BERT# B R
Construction of properties (note) M REE (M aE) 187,392
Authorised but not contracted for: EHERRETL -
Construction of properties (note) MEREE (N aE) 300,000 300,000
Note: Capital commitment for construction of Bat: YERIWEXRERERBARESD
properties related to capital commitment for BLUMEEYZERRBEENE
construction of film studio and hotel in AME - RBEAREEERBEGEILT
Foshan, the PRC. The authorised amount b 5 AT T8 BT /9 4 b A & 15
was approved by the directors of the (REBBHEE T AR E RS
Company according to the land lease RABRIR S EBALELE) A
agreements signed between the Group and ARESHECHAQAESHE -

the local authority in Foshan, the PRC, in
relation to the leasing of lands for
development of tourism and related
entertainment business and hotel
operations.




INTERIM REPORT 2016 % /N4 th i ik

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements, during the period of the
six months ended 30 June 2016, the Group paid interest
of approximately HK$455,000 (30 June 2015:
approximately HK$682,000) to a related company and
approximately HK$22,406,000 (30 June 2015:
approximately HK$1,088,000) to a shareholder. A
shareholder offered to waive the accrued interest of CB5
up to the date of conversion of approximately
HK$1,829,000 (30 June 2015: Nil).

24. ACQUISITION OF LUX UNICORN

LIMITED

On 15 April 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of
100% of the issued share capital of Lux Unicorn Limited
(“Lux Unicorn”). Lux Unicorn is principally engaged in the
sourcing and execution of investment opportunities for real
estate development projects in the PRC.

The consideration consisted of (i) PN with principal
amount of HK$80,000,000 at par value; and (i) convertible
bond with principal amount of HK$300,000,000 at par

R B R B R E

23. BT R 5

BRI I RRAR & BT S TRk H 20 8 & Hh -
BE_Z—RNENAZTALEAEASHHEA - A%
Er-—EEBEARE—ERESNZMAFELD
455,000 L (Z T —AF N A =1+ H : £682,000
B IT) & #922,408,000%8 T (ZE—HFAA=1H:
#91,088,000/70) - — BB EREHEZEHAR 2
FERTFIE 491,829,000/ (ZE—RAF A A=1H:
=)o

24, Wl ak gk A R 2 W)

R-F-AFWA+REA  AEETKWEEREES
RO (TEBD D BEITRAZION - BB 2 EE
EBRYDERZETRAEHEMBRAIKRER
B o

REBE()ZAEZETAE £ 5 4A80,000,000% T
CERAEZEBE RMEREBEZRTASSEA
300,000,000 T 2 AT R & % ([ AL AT AR &

value (“CB 5). #1) e
Consideration transferred TEEKE
At 15 April
2015
NR-F—A2F
mA+AH
HK$’000
FHET
Fair value of PN

Fair value of CB 5

LR R

ZRARfE 73,496
AR ESFC AR E 330,005

403,501
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR RS R I

24. ACQUISITION OF LUX UNICORN 24. Wl % B A B A ()
LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of REBENREENEERFEZNER
acquisition

At 15 April
2015
R-E—1%F
A+&AH
HK$’000
FHT
Current assets RENEE
Deposit e
Non-current assets EREEE
Land lease prepayments FENEHHEE 402,251
Net assets BEEFE 403,501
Net cash outflows on acquisition of Lux Unicorn KEERNREFRE
Six months
ended 30 June
2016
BE
NI
+Hi1
~fEA
HK$’000
FHERT
Consideration paid in cash LR &2 RE
Loss: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired WA Re MBS
£EEBEH

Total @z
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the period under review, the Group reported a
revenue of approximately HK$27.56 million, representing
an increase of 100.61% as compared to the revenue in
previous period. The revenue was mainly attributable to
the business of film studio and hotel in the PRC, while
part of the revenue was generated from sales of goods,
film, and artiste management.

Staff costs for the period under review increased to
approximately HK$19.16 million from approximately
HK$18.55 million in previous period. An increase of
approximately HK$0.61 million in staff costs.

Finance costs for the period review increased
approximately HK$28.53 million by reason of the interest
charged of additional bonds issued in 2015.

Other operating expenses for the period under review
increased to approximately HK$44.24 million from
approximately HK$34.61 million in previous period. An
increase of approximately HK$9.63 million was mainly due
to an increase in direct cost such as food supplies,
ingredients and other fast moving consumer goods which
consumed by the hotel and the film studio in order to
cope with the growth of tourists.

For the six months ended 30 June 2016, the Group
recorded a net loss of approximately HK$130.74 million as
compared to net loss of the comparable period of
approximately HK$82.42 million. The record of loss for the
six months ended was mainly due to the increase of
finance costs.

B i M o3

St 5 1]

REEBE @ AEE SR A 427,560,000 7T
B E—HBHRA EF100.61% c KA T ERAS
BT RBMBEEER  mAEoRAQKREER
HE BEREATE -

O EAHARI M B TR AN £ — H#5R4918,550,0007% 7T
HEANZE 4919,160,000/8 7T © & T A A 44 h1%7610,000
BT e

o] /&8 HA 6 /9 B4 B AR AN 32 N #928,530,00078 7t + Jh 2R
B AFRTZHMEESFNAESZE -

ol R BRI M E b 482 8 B A E—HifE 434,610,000
BTG AN E #944,240,00078 7T - H AL G M
499,630,000/ 7T 75 = Z A A 5 AN B JE & 52 R
FrEfzRm MREKREMREEEREZCEE
AN DA JE T 3% I8 R PR ©

(BT NENA=ZTHIEANER - KEMERE
5518 ¥ 58 49 /A130,740,00078 7T -+ 1M Lt & HA RS A9 &S
18 5% 58 B 49 582,420,000/ 7T © & = /<18 A 1 BRI
BRISNEEBEEZANBMEK RGN -
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Xigiao National Arts Studio Project

Located in Foshan city, Guangdong province, the Group’s
Xigiao National Arts Studio Project has a total developed
land area of 444,000 square meters and is a unique
studio which incorporates tourism and recreational
facilities such as film shooting areas, theme parks, hotel
and performing arts complexes.

Xigiao National Arts Studio officially opened in October
2015. It is believed that the Studio will become one of the
hot tourist spots in Guangdong province which could
attract tourists and provide them with immersive
entertainment experience.

In connection with this, the Group entered a selling
agreement with a several travel agencies to promote the
travel packages and Greater China packages of the
National Arts Studio. The Group has meanwhile operating
a wholly owned travel agency. With different seasons and
festivals, a variety of travel and accommodation packages
are launched in order to attract different groups of
customers.

A series of festival events were held in the Studio which
drew a significant number of visitors into the Studio.
Approximately 26,000 visitors were recorded in the
Chinese New Year celebration and food festival held in
February 2016. With the Xigiao Government support, the
Marathon event held in June 2016 and attracted over
9,000 participants and successfully generated a world
record “The marathon of most contestants dressed as
Kung Fu Hero”. These mega events successfully raise the
Studio’s brand awareness and arouse a heated discussion
in the city.

Following the collaboration with different agencies, several
large events are under progress which it is expected to
pull in more visitors. It is believed that the Studio will
become a well known travel spot and the Studio Project
will be pushed to the peak.

Film Shooting Base

The film shooting base is the core project of the Xigiao
National Arts Studio Project and equips with the most
excellent and comprehensive ancillary facilities featuring
the most realistic and delicate details in the South China.

The film shooting base covers 374,000 square metres,
including a lake of 120,000 square meters.
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During the first half of 2016, several films and TV series
were produced here by virtue of the extensive choices,
supreme geographical location and multifunctional
ancillary services of the shooting base. There were
approximately 30 production crews filmed in the shooting
base including approximately 8 medium and large size of
production crews. On 11 January 2016, the Group has
entered into a rental agreement, taking the role of rental
agent, with a well known company renting film shooting
equipment. The plentiful props, attires and high-tech
shooting equipment provided by the partners, coupled
with advanced filming supporting serve and scenic spots
of the Studio, are expected to attract more medium and
large size of production crews.

Apart from that, the high-profile studio will be completed
and commenced in 2017 to enrich the choices of scenic
spots for crew searching for indoor filming locations. .

With the expansion of the shooting base and collaboration
with the above resourceful companies, it is believed that
it will generate a favorable income and bring substantial
gain to the Group as enormous synergistic effect will be
created and more tourists will be attracted.

Wedding Photography

The Group reached an agreement with a renowned
domestic wedding photography chain group in the fourth
quarter of 2013 to develop its new wedding photography
business. Through which, the Group leased the Studio
with an area of approximately 20 mu (13,333.33 square
meters) for a term of 12 years and the wedding
photography company invested RMB10 million for the
construction of scenic spots in different styles such as
European, Korean and Japanese styles and guarantee
there will be at least 28,800 couples taking wedding
photos in the scenic spots per year. The annual income of
this arrangement will be no less than approximately
RMB1.2 million starting from 2016. According to figures by
the first half of 2016, there were over 8,500 pairs of
couples taking their wedding photos in the Studio during
the period as anticipated.

Hotel

A 5-star hotel next to the Studio and facilitated from
deluxe suites to economic standard rooms to cater to
tourists’ needs has been officially commenced its
operation in November 2015. Following to the mega
events held in the Studio, the occupancy rate of the Hotel
increased significantly. During the period of the Marathon
event, the highest occupancy rate was approximately
86%. In addition, series of catering seasonal promotions
that launched by the Hotel has successfully attracted
more visitors and generated a favorable income.
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To allow our guest to have a splashing good time, the
Group acts ahead in providing thoughtful services to meet
the needs of the guest such as Spa, Business Centre,
Modern Swimming Pool and Shifter Kart. In the future, the
Group would seek opportunities to provide
comprehensive services with additional facilities to cater to
tourists’ needs.

Film Production

As to the film production segment, the Group is
committed to produce and invest in movie and online TV
programme. The Group invested in the productions of Si
Dang (%t #) and (Lt WM 3), which are nearly
completed and will be shown in cinemas and internet
respectively. It is expected that they will become one of
the most popular movies and online TV programmes and
will generate a favorable income. Apart from that, the
charity movie, Our Days (#{fI#I6EIE) is now under
progress. It is believed that the charity movie will raise the
Group’s corporate image and the Group’s brand
awareness.

Cinema

National Arts Films Production Limited (“NA Films”), an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
collaborated with its joint venture for the development of
cinema business in a large shopping mall in a
transportation hub area of Zhu Hai.

NA Films held 60% equity interest in the joint venture. The
cinema boasts eight screens and a total of more than
730 seats, and had commenced its operation since May
2014 which supports further comprehensive development
of the Group’s entertainment and culture business.

Artiste Management

To enhance the visibility of our artistes Rose Chan, Brian
Yuen, Rachel Chau, Kitson Shum, Lemon Yip and Marvel
Chow, the Group has arranged a variety of performance
opportunities including the participation in the charity
movie, Our Days (¥ {fI#I6EHE) and being the show host
of the Chinese New Year and Marathon events. Besides,
our artistes will perform and participate in different shows
and events. The Group will also identify suitable
institutions  for them to serve as spokespersons and
involve in advertising photography and drama.

With the huge market of domestic movies, the Group will
continue to recruit artistes with potential in the future to
cope with the demands in the vast market and expand
the artiste management segment, hoping that it will
become one of the major income sources of the Group.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

Current assets MENEE
Current liabilities mEAaE
Current ratio mEN =R

ROE2RHUBER
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
—E—REF —E-RF
~A=+H +=-—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZX) (EE=)
83,106 69,507
281,574 602,443
29.5% 11.5%

Current ratio as at 30 June 2016 was 29.5% (31
December 2015: 11.5%). As at 30 June 2016, the Group’s
total cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$176,000 (31 December 2015:
approximately HK$4.36 million).

Dividend

The directors do not recommend payment of an interim
dividend for the period ended 30 June 2016 (2015: Nil).

RZZE—RFRNAZTHNRBLEAE205% (ZF
—AF+ZA=+—H:11.5%)c RZZT—/NF X
AZ+HB A&EEBELRERESSEEEY
176,000 T(ZZE—HAF+ A=+ —H8: 4
4,360,000/ 7T) ©

K&

EETERINBE_T—RFRA=THLHM
MR B (T —RF &) -
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BErRBRERULE

AREIROR_EZ_F+A+ B EBRATAI%E
RET - KARRIBRAERESLER N _T—K~F
NA=1H - #£E3,801,722,816A% O 317 & &1 2 %
FREBR o

Capital Structure and Gearing Ratio

The shares of the Company were listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange on 17 October 2002. The capital of
the Company comprises only ordinary shares. As at 30
June 2016, 3,801,722,816 ordinary shares were issued
and fully paid.

31 December 2015
—E-RF+=A=t-A

30 June 2016
—E—-—RE,HA=1+H

Amount Relative % Amount Relative %
&8 HE % &5 ¥ %

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (&%)

HK$°000 HK$’000

F#T FAET
Bank overdrafts HRITEX 8,486 8,345 0.4%

Loans from a related — BB ARN

company BR = 12,400 0.6%
Loans from shareholders JRERME R 390,180 139,500 6.6%
Borrowings HE 68,550 269,161 12.7%
Promissory note A R R 84,176 79,576 3.8%
Bonds EE2 404,020 273,970 13%
Convertible bonds BEEE 208,123 377,450 17.9%
Finance lease obligation B 5 B R R 22,524 21,666 1%
Total borrowings Epg b 1,276,059 1,182,068 56%
Equity T 909,719 930,382 44%
Total capital employed FriE A ERNBEE 2,185,778 2,112,450 100.0%

The Group’s gearing ratio was approximately 58.4% as at
30 June 2016 (2015: 56%). If the bonds, convertible
bonds (liability component), promissory note and finance
lease obligation as stated above were to be excluded, the
underlying gearing ratio was 21.4% (2015: 20.3%). The
increase in the gearing ratio in current year was due to
increased loans from third parties and shareholders
during the year.

RIE—RFERA=TH TEENERLENR

58.4% (ZZ — 4 : 56%) °
ARBEEHFBESRD)

A MER £l ) 5
AL R R KBS E A

o HBEeELERAE214% (ZF — 14 20.3%) °
AFEAGBHEEREATTARFEARTILEE =T KRE




The completion of a major and connected transaction

A resolution proposed in the Special General Meeting (the
“SGM”) held on 10 April 2015 was duly passed by the
shareholders by way of poll and reference is made to the
circular issued by the Company on 23 March 2015. The
Group entered into the sale and purchase agreement to
purchase the entire issued share capital of Lux Unicorn
Limited and obtained the land use right with a total site
area of approximately 368.33 mu. The Group
management expected the development of those nearby
areas would bring along a new height of the Xigiao
National Arts Studio Project.

In regard to the acquisition in accordance with the sale
and purchase agreement dated 22 December 2014,
promissory note 1 amounting to HK$80 million and
Convertible Bonds amounting to HK$300 million have
been issued to the Vendor or its nominee, while the
remaining HK$20 million promissory note 2 will only be
issued subject to the obtaining of the land use rights
certificate in relation to the No-Certificate Land. The land
use rights certificate have not been obtained on or before
31 December 2015, the consideration shall be adjusted by
reducing therefrom on amount of HK$20 million, and in
such event, promissory note 2 shall be not be issued.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group’s reporting currency is expressed in Hong
Kong dollars. During the reporting period for the six
months ended 30 June 2016, most of the transactions,
assets and liabilities of the Group were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. During the period
under review, since the Group had both Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi receipts and payments, the net
Renminbi exposure was not significant. The Board
considers that the Group’s expos oreign exchange
risk was not significa >

g N
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Contingent Liabilities HHEE

According to the land lease agreements signed between RIBEEBRERAT(REB 22 EWBAR)BEAE
Lux Unicorn, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company b 1L T 5 B L R & 4t B R R B A5 A AR
and the local authority in Foshan, the PRC, in relation to BIREERRBEESMETN LB ERZ
the leasing of lands for development of tourism and REEEBERBBEERET DR ARES300,000,000
related entertainment business and hotel operations, the JC v SRS B ZE Ry 5 i EE 2 1 A R #4,000,000
Group shall invest no less than RMB300 million for the THEREES FHEBEASNRETHERS
projects or the Group is liable to pay RMB4 million as AR =FRMNFARNR T RIEALE - KQARE
damages to the local authority. The completion of ERBEEERTEEBEMANGY Bt EBAE
constructions and commencement of operations of the HEEEDEE -

projects shall be within three and four years respectively
from the signing of the lease agreements. The directors of
the Company are in the opinion that the conditions set
out in the leasing agreements could be achieved and no
provision for liability is necessary.




INTERIM REPORT 2016 & — N4 i it 45 >

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company and their
respective associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were required to
be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Exchange, were as follows:

1. Long Positions in the shares of the Company

e o e

EHEREERTBANERBA - M
B e oy B 06 o7 2 HE &% iR A

REZBE—REXNA=+TH EFF ARAFETHK
ABRRERB 2B ARARR R B AR

B(EEREALBPEGRITERRBEKED)E
XVED) 2ty - HEROEESFEBEZREERR
HIERPIEXVEETRFED AP R EAMEAR
ARz s NORR (B Ll ATIREZS
EERBERIGEXREFERRAEE 2RER
HKA) - AR R I & B R ) SB352{%k Z AR E B
BREzERMA 2SR - HREA
ERETARAEE 4616 E567F 2R ERAG AR
ARz m MORRANT :

1. REZGTRHZHE

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Interest in capital of the
controlled Company
Capacity/Nature Number of corporation EEXAT
Name of Directors of interest shares =i Total EBITREZ
EENE S HEEME BRZHE ATZEE @zt L EON=1 174
(a) The Company
(Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each)
AAR(EREEIB TZEEA)
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Note 1) Beneficial owner 783,473,000 — 783,473,000 20.61%
e B S A (A7 2 1) BEmEAA
Interest of spouse 23,352,000 — 23,352,000 0.61%
Bic 8 4 28
Ms. Law Po Yee (Note 2) Beneficial owner 23,352,000 — 23,352,000 0.61%
RER LT (Hi72) ERERA
Interest of spouse 783,473,000 — 783,473,000 20.61%

[iRREE:

Note 1:  Mr. Sin and Ms. Law beneficially owned
806,825,000 Shares, representing approximately
21.22% of the issued share capital of the
Company. By virtue of SFO, Ms. Law, the
spouse of Mr. Sin, was deemed to be interested
in all the Shares in which Mr. Sin was
interested.

Kiat1: %St K& 7 2 1+ & = % 5806,825,000
BBEMD HARAREEITRALD
21.22% ° RIRFEHFRBAEED - E2+
Ok EZBEB)ER B E ST EREE
w2 T IR (R s o
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13 May 2010

—Z-ZFRATAR

ay 2020
TERA-THE
“Z-TERATAR

19 May 2020
2 SEF[-+AZ

33,420

Note 2:  Ms. Law is the spouse of Mr. Sin and is deemed Watz: BZtTREFREZES  BWHERAENE
to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Sin FERBESRBEEIEE RNEE
is deemed or taken to be interested for the HERRZBROTPHEEER -
purpose of the SFO.

2. Rights to acquire shares in the Company 2. BEXALGRHHBEF
. . . VAPt 1 /. L b =
i PostIPO Share Option Scheme i BARERREBREE
Number of share options*
BREYE"
Outstanding
As at as at
Exercise 1 January Granted  Exercised Lapsed 30 June 2016
price per 2016  during the during during the RZ-B—-RF
Details of grantees Date of grant share*  Exercisable period RZB-RE period  the period period ~A=+H
REAHE RLBH BRITHE THEEE —-B-B HARE HaTE  HAKR HRTE
(HK$)
(B7)
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam 29 September 2010 2.89 29 September 2010 to 7,964,160 - - - 7,964,160
(Non-executive Director) ZZ-TFAAZTAB 2 September 2020
GEREEFRTES) ZZ-ZEAAZTHBE
ZZ-TFAAZH
Ms. Law Po Yee 29 September 2010 289 29 September 2010 to 3,982,080 - - - 3,982,080
(Executive Director) —Z-FFAAZTAB 2 September 2020
BERRL(HBITES) ZZ-FFAAZTABE
ZZ-TENAZH
Mr. Chow Kai Weng 29 September 2010 289 29 September 2010 to 24,888 - - - 24,888
(Executive Director) “2-ZFEAAZTAR 2 September 2020
AREEEHTES) ZZ2-ZHAAZTHRE
—R-TFAAZA
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim 20 May 2010 3.38 20 May 2010 to 25,065 - - - 25,065
(Non-executive Director) —F-TFRA=-TH 19 May 2020
FRAREGRTES) ZZ2-ZHHRR-TRE
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i New Share Option Scheme i AEREHE
Number of share options*
BREYE"
Outstanding
As at as at
Exercise 1 January Granted  Exercised Lapsed 30 June 2016
price per 2016 during the  during the  during the ~ RZF-RE
Details of grantees Date of grant share*  Exercisable period RZF-7& period period period ~R=1H
RBRAHE REAH BRATER TRHA -A-H MR BmTE LS AT
(HKS)
(%7
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam 28 March 2011 762 28 March 2012 to 3,360,403 - - - 3,360,403
(Non-executive Director) —Z-—F=AZtN\B 27 March 2021
EEREEGERTES) ZT-Z5ZAZTN\HE
“RC-FZACtER
31 March 2012 559 31 March 2012 to 134,450 - - - 134,450
—T-—F=f=1-H 30 March 2017
—Z--f§=f=t-R%
ZE-+t5ZA=1H
Ms. Law Po Yee 28 March 2011 762 28 March 2012 to 3,360,403 - - - 3,360,403
(Executive Director) —F-—F=f=tN\A 27 March 2021
BARKL(MNES) ZE-Z#ZfZ1TN\HE
ZEZ-%ZR-+4AR
31 March 2012 559 31 March 2012 to 134,450 - - - 134,450
ZR-CEZf=t-H 30 March 2017
ZZ-CEZf=+-HZ
ZE-tF=A=1H
Mr. Chow Kai Weng 28 March 2011 762 28 March 2012 to 58,807 - - - 58,807
(Executive Director) —T——FZf-t)\B 27 March 2021
ARREE@ITES) ZZ-Z£=F-t)\RE
—E--%=A=t+H
31 March 2012 559 31 March 2012 to 67,225 - - - 67,225
—2--#=f=1-H 30 March 2017
“Z--F=f=t-R%

Z3-tFZA=1R

1,344,161
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i New Share Option Scheme (Continued) i HERESE(E)
Number of share options*
BREYE"
Outstanding
As at as at
Exercise 1 January Granted  Exercised Lapsed 30 June 2016
price per 2016  during the  during the  duringthe RZ-F-RE
Details of grantees Date of grant share*  Exercisable period R-F-RE period period period /\Fl +A
RBRAHE REAH BRATER TRHA -A-H MR BmTE LS AT
(HKS)
(%7
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert 28 March 2011 762 28 March 2012 to 33,604 - - - 33,604
(Independent Non-executve ~ —E——4=E=+/\R 27 March 2021
Director) ZR-ZEZAZTNRE
EECAEBUFNTES) ZEC-%=f-t+H
31 March 2012 559 31 March 2012 to 67,225 - - - 67,225
—T-—F=f=1-H 30 March 2017
—Z--f§=f=t-R%
ZE-+t5ZA=1H
Mr. Chan Tin Lup, Trevor 28 March 2011 762 28 March 2012 to 33,604 - - - 33,604
(Independent Non-executive ~ —E——4#ZF=1/\A 27 March 2021
Director) ZT-ZF=fA=TN\RE
RAUEE(BUFRTES) ZEZ-%ZR-+4AR
31 March 2012 559 31 March 2012 to 67,225 - - - 67,225
—Z--f=f=+-H 30 March 2017
“R--fZf=t-HE
ZE-tF=A=1H
Prof. Wong Lung Tak, Patrick 28 March 2011 762 28 March 2012 to 33,604 - - - 33,604
(Independent Non-executie ~ —E——F=F=+/\A 27 March 2021
Director) ZZ-ZF=A-tN\RZE
EREARBUFHNES) ZE--%=A=t++H
31 March 2012 559 31 March 2012 to 67225 - - - 67,225
—2--#=f=1-H 30 March 2017
“Z-—f=f=+-R%
ZE-t%ZA=1H
Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Chief |3,% EXFWEN RZE—RESA=FTH £Z

Executive or their a
any intere

REEEACHE AMERAAR S HE
FE(TERBBHFRBEGRIIEXVE)ZFE
G - HEARDIESTREREEAREESFRL
BERP EXVIBETR ESD B2 R EANE AR
ARz RS AR (BE L ATRIEZSE
M%&Hﬂ 5 {6 1 {6 XX “‘{’E&ﬁz\%%ﬁszﬂémi
E) me% oY 35215 R TE A E

: SR I Bl E AR
3 E B AE ARRAA]

ad, as at 30 June




SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONSY’
INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2016, the persons or corporations, other
than a director or chief executive of the Company, who
had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of Part XV
of the SFO or had otherwise been notified to the
Company were as follows:

1. Long Positions in the shares of the Company
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B RN YN SR
38 Iz By < HE &% Je IR B

R=B—AGEAAS+A  BREAATRBELR
B 9% 5 0 E XV BOB6HE AR E 2 B R M AR
B AAATOEAE - FIALREE(BAR
AEERITHBRINRART 2 BIHRAAMBR G
A A A

1. REZGTRHZHE

Approximate
percentage of the
issued share capital
of the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity No. of shares held EEXxATE
BEESZ 5% KA EE BITRAZEBOEDEL
Tse Young Lai Beneficial owner 563,547,600 14.82%

A RE BEDlEEA

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole shareholder of
the Company dated 22 July 2002, the Company
conditionally adopted and approved Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme. The principal terms of which are set out
in Appendix IV to the prospectus of the Company dated
9 October 2002.

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company dated 29 September
2010, a new share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted and the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme was terminated. The principal terms of
New Share Option Scheme are set out in the circular of
the Company dated 6 September 2010.

Ji 1B HE W

BREBEAARE-—REAR_ZFZT_FLA_FT A2
EERZER - AR BRI R A LI A FRAFH
BIEBRETS - EENTIEGRERBEHA
R FEFANAZARRBRERRMEHEOA -

REARBR_ZE—ZFAATHESETZRER
RRlR&E E&BRFEE - — AR 2
(B At = 81 ) R - M & RAFIHRARR B
RS AR - TEREFE ZEEGRARERAE
ARIRN_Z—ZTFNARNAELZEEA -
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Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

As at 30 June 2016, the share options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 12,096,325 shares of the Company granted
pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme were
outstanding. The details of the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme as at 30 June 2016 are set out as follows:
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EXLHEREBRENE

MN-Z—XNEXNB=1H BEBILHEREZE
AR ET B4R i ) R BB A A AE A $£12,096,3250% 1%
MZERESRETE R_Z—XEXA=TAH
ZENARABREERESEFBEOT:

Number of share options*

B ENE
Outstanding
Exercise As at as at
price per 1 January Granted Exercised Lapsed 30 June 2016
Category of share* 2016 during the during during the WZF—XE
Participants # ik Date of grant R-T—RE period the period period ~A=+H
PN TiEE- REBH —HA—H HARYE HRTE HAXH i K 1T €
(HK$)
(#7T)
Directors 3.66 13 May 2010 383,292 — - - 33,292
= —T-TFRA+=H
Directors 3.38 20 May 2010 91,905 — — — 91,905
= —E-ZFhA-+H
Directors 2.89 29 September 2010 11,971,128 — — — 11,971,128
&% —ZT-ZTFNA=1+NAB
Total 12,096,325 — - - 12,096,325
R
New Share Option Scheme HERESE

In accordance with the proposed resolution in annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) held on 29 June 2015, the
scheme limit on the grant of options under the New Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company be refreshed to up to 288,838,948 Shares,
being 10% of the Shares in issue as at the AGM date
based on 2,888,389,483 Shares in issue (excluding share
options previously granted, outstanding, cancelled, lapsed
or exercised under the New Share Option Scheme) (the
“Refreshed Scheme Limit”"); and the Directors are
authorized, at their absolute discretion, to grant share
options to subscribe for Shares within the Refreshed
Scheme Limit in accordance with the rules of the New
Share Option Scheme; to allot, issue and deal with the
Shares pursuant to the exercise of share options granted
under the New Share Option Scheme within the
Refreshed Scheme Limit; and to do such acts and
execute such documents for or incidental to implement
the New Share Option Scheme within the Refreshed
Scheme Limit.

BEAE-—AFEFNA-THEEFZREBEK
S((KREBEBFASDLREZRER  BEFER
5T 8 R 2R B F {A] E Ath B8 AR 5T B9 B AR
Z T EIRBEE F ¥ & £ %288,838,948/% & {5 + AP
A2,888,389,483% B 1T I A E X - AR E
RAEXNEEHDEITRND 210% (B 15 5 8 A% # 5t
Bl Z AR - MARITEE - G RRETEZE
BRERINTEFTEIRE) AEBRESE2ER
BRENBERESSZAVNBREAIRBERDZBE
AEHE - BEAEFTEIRTE AR PRI B IR
STEIFTIRE BB TR BB BITRE
BB  BEAEHEIRBEAR & EEREH
FrEIRBEESERRTHEREZELERTE
MBS B -



As at 30 June 2016, the share options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 8,838,012 shares of the Company granted
pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme were
outstanding. The details of the New Share Option
Scheme as at 30 June 2016 are set out as follows:
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R-B—RNENA=1TH  BEHBERES2FL
A R AR F) A $£8,838,01208 A% 17 2 B8 A% 4 1 ok
ETE A B RENA=THZHERZETR
E3- NN

Number of share options*

BRERE"
Outstanding
Exercise As at as at
price per 1 January Granted Exercised Lapsed 30 June 2016
Category of share* 2016 during the during during the RZ-ZTF—REF
Participants #H& Date of grant RZF—7RE period the period period ~BA=+H
2mE N85 TEE: REBH —A—8 HRiEE HRTE Bk 18 K AT 1
(HKS)
(%7t
Directors 7.62 28 March 2011 8,232,987 - - - 8,232,987
= —T——%=A=+/H
Directors 5.59 31 March 2012 605,025 — — — 605,025
£F —Z——#=A=+—H
Total 8,838,012 — — — 8,838,012

B

EMPLOYEE AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

The directors of the board (the “Directors”) believed that
the quality of its employees is the most important factor
in sustaining the Group’s growth and improving its
profitability. The Group’s remunerates its employees based
as their performances, experience and prevailing industry
practices. In addition to basic salaries and mandatory
p'rlovident fund, staff t incl Y erage

.llll NCl nare o

.

The

T B B 50 B B 3R

EEeRES(EFDMAE BREERUAKEF
BRERLUEBFNENEZEHEZ - AKENEE
HMORTERR - EERERTEBEHETE - K
EAXFERBEEREERIN  AEETREEER
REFIRBERESBETREN -

4
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AmmslEaEXsTE BEBERR
BETHETEEBTMNEEE - EFHAE
HEAEESHITRIFTEBR



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
B T &Rk

PURCHASE, SALE OR
REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the six months ended 30 June 2016.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or management shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or their
respective associates had any interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in a business which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) in 2002 with written terms of
reference, which deal clearly with its authorities and
duties. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review the Company’s annual reports and financial
statements, interim reports and quarterly reports and
discuss with the management over issues relating to
auditing, internal control and financial reporting. The Audit
Committee now comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
(Chairman), Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor, Prof. Wong Lung Tak
Patrick and Mr. Li Kit Chee. The Group’s unaudited
results for the six months ended 30 June 2016 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the
opinion that the preparation of such results has complied
with applicable accounting standards and requirements
and that adequate disclosures have been made.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance practices and
procedures with an aim to maximizing the shareholders’
interests as well as to enhancing the stakeholders’
transparency and accountability. In this respect, to the
best knowledge of the Board, the Company has complied
with all of the code provisions set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance contained in Appendix 15 of the
GEM Listing Rules during the six months ended 30 June
2016.

The Company has prepared a corporate governance
report in accordance with Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM
Listing Rules attached to the 2015 annual report of the
Company.
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MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors adopted by the
Company throughout the six months ended 30 June
2016.

On behalf of the Board

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
Law Po Yee

Vice Chairperson, Executive Director

and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 9 August 2016
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS HHG
Chairman and Non-executive Director EEREHBTEE
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam e B A

Vice Chairperson, Executive Director and FIZRRABITEERITHAEH
Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Law Po Yee EERZLT

Vice Chairperson and Executive Director BZERHATEE
Mr. Chow Kai Weng Rk E
Executive Director HITEE

Ms. Sin Ho Yee HREE
Non-executive Director EHTEE

Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim EX S
Independent Non-executive Directors BUEHITEF
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor [NV

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert EELCEE

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick HEEHREK

Mr. Li Kit Chee THZEE
COMPANY SECRETARY 2 W) B
Mr. Luk Ho Lun B ok B S A
COMPLIANCE OFFICER B2 AT
Ms. Law Po Yee FERRZL

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL AR R B R R
PLACE OF BUSINESS

Units 3011B-12 F 54 38 F1168-200%%

80#£3011B-12%



INTERIM REPORT 2016 % /N4 th i ik @

CORPORATE INFORMATION
N

SHARE REGISTRAR AND JB 0y 38 5 R % Al R
TRANSFER OFFICES
Principal share registrar and transfer office TERBBFRELRE

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda Bermuda

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office FERWEFRELAE
Tricor Secretaries Limited BENERBAERAA
Level 22, Hopewell Centre a8

183 Queen’s Road East 2 f3 KiE H183%
Hong Kong AR L2218
AUTHORISED P2 REAR R
REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Law Po Yee HERZLT

Mr. Chow Kai Weng BRI TE
COMMITTEES BTITEZEY
Audit Committee BERFEE

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman) EECEE(EE)
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor [oR K S5 4

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick =R E

Mr. Li Kit Chee EX S
Remuneration Committee FWESE

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman) EECEE(EE)
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor R K 3 Fe A4

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick HERHK

Mr. Li Kit Chee T2 EE
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LEGAL ADVISORS LB

Conyers Dill & Pearman Conyers Dill & Pearman
AUDITORS ¥ B h

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited Bl & EHMERAR
Certified Public Accountants HEEEED

31/F, Gloucester Tower BB

The Landmark IR

11 Pedder Street 2711598

Central B ES

Hong Kong HETITRESE
PRINCIPAL BANKERS 3 2R AT
Hang Seng Bank 18 4 R 17
REGISTERED OFFICE af: i 2 = %
Clarendon House Clarendon House

2 Church Street 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11 Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda Bermuda
GROUP’'S WEBSITE A 4R 1 48 nE
http://www.nationalarts.hk http://www.nationalarts.hk
STOCK CODE JB& Oy A 5%

8228 8228
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